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AVERAGE DEADWEIGHT AGE (March 2001): 5.8 YEARS *

VLCC 302,000 dwt 14.9%

SUEZMAX TANKERS 492,000 dwt 24.3%

AFRAMAX TANKERS 801,377 dwt 39.6%
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HANDYMAX PRODUCT TANKERS 160,855 dwt 8.0%

TOTAL DEADWEIGHT TONNES   2,022,081 dwt 1 0 0%
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CHAIRMAN’S  LETTER

April 30, 2001

Dear Fellow Shareowner:

When did the century end and the new millennium begin? The debate is endless, but one fact is almost
c e rtain, the year 2000 marked the start of a new era for the tanker industry. 1998 was a challenging year
only to be followed by an extremely depressed 1999. We witnessed a remarkable turnabout in 2000.

MIF rode the waves in exemplary fashion. Our company managed a fifth consecutive year of record
profits in 1998. The severe storms of 1999 interrupted that string of records. However, MIF was among
the highly limited group of tanker companies that operated profitably. This dismal period was followed
by the glory days of 2000. Last year MIF’s net income from operations was four times the depressed
profits of 1999 and attained a new apex of one and one-half times the previous record level of 1998.
It appears that MIF’s goal to produce sustainable earnings growth is on track. 

We have noted in our previous letters the four principal uncertainties confronting MIF. These factors include:

1) Revenue Generation - 1998 was impacted by severe recessions in many Pacific Rim economies. 
1999 saw economic recovery but an abrupt decline in cargoes arising from a curtailment of production
by OPEC and others. Conversely 2000 was exceptional. The worldwide economy grew at a strong pace
and the demand for petroleum and its products followed suit. Availability of crude and products created
only minor constraints. Meanwhile charterers sought out and paid a premium for modern tonnage
operated by quality ship managers. The year 2000 produced an environment approaching ideal. 

MIF’s policy of committing much of its tonnage to medium and longer term employment reduced the dips
in 1998 and 1999, but constrained the gains in 2000. We intend to continue this policy.

2) Interest Rate Risk - the tanker business is capital intensive. MIF employs significant leverage in 
order to attain optimal cost of capital. Interest expense is an important factor in our overall profitability.
During much of 1999 and 2000 the U.S. Federal Reserve Board was concerned about inflationary
pressures. This resulted in a series of increases in targeted interest rates, both nominal and real. 

MIF employed derivative contracts in 1998, 1999 and 2000 which resulted in reducing effective
borrowing costs. Such contracts could actually result in increasing borrowing costs. Nevertheless, it is the
judgment of management and your board that prudent use of such contracts can improve the
predictability of financing expense and from time to time result in lower effective borrowing costs.

3) Operating Costs - the continued strength of the U.S. Dollar has eased the pressure of rising 
operating costs. Nevertheless, an upward bias persists in salaries, wages, maintenance, bunkers and
other direct operating costs.  Insurance costs will rise in 2001 and all indications point to future increases. 
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MIF’s Management continues to exercise effective cost containment. However, in both 1999 and 2000
MIF absorbed unscheduled dry dockings for special repairs and upgradings which reduced revenues
and added to routine operating expenses.

4) Volatile Asset Valuations - Efforts by ship builders to fill order books in slack periods led to sharp 
price markdowns in 1998. Soft freight rates in 1999 pushed second hand vessel values sharply lower.
Depressed asset values can have an impact on borrowing costs and restrict the ability to exercise timely
fleet renewal. 

During 1999 MIF’s fleet suffered a contraction in asset values. This was tempered by the concentration
in younger modern vessels and the benefit of longer term employment contracts. Last year, the value of
the fleet enjoyed a sharp rebound. On balance, vessel values and new building contracts are somewhat
above book values.  

As noted earlier the industry suffered sharp earnings reversals in 1998 followed by deep losses in 1999.
Happily the results of 2000 provided a sharp contrast. MIF’s achievements are detailed in management’s
review and analysis (page 7). Key financial milestones were:

● Record net revenues of $85.8 million, up 27% from 1999.

● Income before depreciation of $34.8 million or 35% higher than 1999.

● Net income of $14.1 million, which was more than triple the $4.35 million of 1999 that included      
a $980,000 gain from a vessel sale.

Looking ahead, the immediate prospects for the tanker market will be influenced by a number of variables.
The U.S. economy is flirting with minimal growth, if not recession. The European economies have
downsized their expectations for near term expansions. The export dependent economies of the
developing countries are adjusting to significant deceleration in their pro g ress. Overall growth in energ y
consumption has been tempered. OPEC has responded with a trimming of production quotas. On the other
hand inventories of crude oil and petroleum products are thin. Thus, the outlook for shipments re m a i n s
positive for modest growth in 2001. Elevated bunkers prices and rising operating costs should be off s e t
by somewhat lower interest costs. On balance the industry should again experience general pro s p e r i t y.

Longer term, MIF’s prospects are bright. The slack growth period of the developed economies should
prove temporary. The huge potentials of the emerging countries will buttress the demand for energy
including petroleum based products and growth appears assured for the forepart of the new century.

The follow-on impact of the ecological damage of the Erika, Castor, etc. sinkings has encouraged
regulators to impose much tighter transportation practices. Although the precise nature of supervision and
rules is yet to be determined there remains little doubt that the result will dictate an acceleration in
scrapping and intensify pressure for quality ship management. As a result we anticipate that both the
pace of fleet renewals and industry consolidation will speed up. MIF intends to participate in both. 
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MIF has contracted to build three Suezmax and one Aframax tankers for delivery in 2002. This program
underscores the objectives of maintaining a young and growing fleet serving the diverse needs of our
customers. The Aframax is the fifth in a series of sisters commenced in 1997 which have enjoyed
excellent operating experience. The three Suezmax tankers add to the ability to serve our charter clients
with a class of vessel likely to serve even broader requirements. 

This aggressive expansion program will be financed through internally generated cash flow from
operations, selective asset sales, and complementary debt. As we had indicated in our letter of last April,
MIF had hoped and planned for an incremental equity placement to facilitate and accelerate the pace
of growth and fleet diversification strategy. Developments in the capital markets have delayed the
implementation of this ongoing initiative. We remain optimistic about the future of our industry and our
ability to excel. Therefore, we intend to actively pursue our growth strategies through organic expansion,
acquisitions or alliances, and future equity offerings. 

Our shareholders’ Annual General Meeting will be held in Athens in July. A formal notice concerning this
meeting will be sent towards the end of May. We hope you will join us for this important occasion. If not,
we urge you to participate in the balloting regarding a range of important proposals presented by
management and your Board of Directors. 

On behalf of the entire Board of Directors I am pleased to commend our management for its performance
these past years and particularly for the foundation laid for the future. We also wish to thank our
shareholders for your understanding and strong support. 

Yours sincerely,

D. John Stavropoulos
Chairman of the Board





“ The Sea, the Source of All ”
Homer
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

D. JOHN STAV R O P O U L O S : Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer retired in 1990, 

having served 33 years with The First National Bank of Chicago and its

parent, First Chicago Corporation.  He chaired the bank's Credit

Strategy Committee, the Country Risk Management Council, and the

Economic Council.  Professional societies included the Robert Morris

Associates (national director), Association of Reserve City Bankers,

Financial Analysts Federation.  Mr. Stavropoulos was appointed by

President George Bush to serve for life on the Presidential Credit

Standards Advisory Committee, he was a director of CIPSCO from

1979 to 1992, an instructor of Economics and Finance at Northwestern

University from 1962 to 1968 and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.  He

was elected to the MIF Board and Chairmanship on June 1, 1994. 

PETER NICHOLSON: Qualified as a Naval Architect and spent his early working life with 

Camper & Nicholsons Limited, the world famous yacht builders,

becoming Managing Director and later Chairman of the company.  In

1972, Camper & Nicholsons was merged with Crest Securities Limited

to form Crest Nicholson Plc, and he has been a director of that company

ever since.  In 1998, he became a non-executive and has taken on other

directorships, including Lloyds TSB Group Plc and other companies.

From 1990 to 1999, Mr. Nicholson was Chairman of Carisbrooke

Shipping Plc., which operates a fleet of fifteen vessels between 2,500

and 5,000 tonnes. Mr. Nicholson was a director of two insurance

broking companies from 1972 through 1991, and remains a consultant

to J & H Marsh & McLennan (UK) Limited.  He has been a director of

MIF since inception and is Chairman of the Audit Committee.

MICHAEL G. JOLLIFFE: Mr. Jolliffe is the Chairman of Manley Vanguard, an Averaging 

Adjusting Company based in Greece and Chairman of Wigham

Richardson (Shipbrokers) Limited, one of the oldest firms of shipbrokers

in the City of London. He is also a director of Royal Olympic Cruise Lines

Inc. a company quoted on the NASDAQ. Mr. Jolliffe is a director of

Associated International Limited, a road building, construction and

services company. He is also a director of various private companies

involved in the shipping and property industries. He has been a director

of MIF since inception.

CHAIRMAN

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANTONIO TA R A G O N I : Has been involved in the shipping industry since 1955, initially with 

B a l l e s t re ro, Tuena and Canepa.  He spent a year with Galbraith &

P e m b roke in London.  He founded in 1961 and is President of

N o l a rma Noleggi & Armamento Srl, presently one of the largest Italian

ship agents.  This company has a long experience of ship

management.  Mr. Taragoni is also the Founder and President of

N o l a rma Tankers Srl, a large Italian tanker shipbroking firm.  He has

been a Council Member of INTERTANKO from 1973 to 1995 and a

Council Member of Porto Petroli SpA of Genoa from 1975 to 1996.

He has been a director of MIF since inception.

NIKOLAS P. TSAKOS: P resident, CEO, and director of MIF since inception.  Shareholder of

Absolute Navigation. Mr. Tsakos has been involved in ship management

since 1981 and has seafaring experience of 36 months.  He is Vi c e

P resident of the Hellenic Marine Environment Protection Agency

( H E L M E PA). Mr. Tsakos is a member of the council of the Independent

Tanker Owners Association (INTERTANKO), a Board member in the

Union of Greek Shipowners (UGS), a council member in the Board of the

G reek Shipping Co-operation Committee (GSCC), and a council member

of the  American Bureau of Shipping (ABS), of Bureau Veritas (BV), and

of the Greek Committee of Det Norske Veritas (DNV).  He graduated fro m

Columbia University, New York in 1985 with a degree in Economics and

Political Science and obtained a Masters' Degree in Shipping, Trade and

Finance from the City of London University Business School in 1987.

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR
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F INANCIAL  H IGHLIGHTS
(Expressed in US Dollars)

2000 1999 1998

NET REVENUE 85,754,000 67,654,420 63,713,011

INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION 34,765,000 25,842,167 26,397,998

INCOME PER SHARE 
BEFORE DEPRECIATION 3.54 2.59 2.64

NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 14,114,000 3,369,189 9,233,998

EARNINGS PER SHARE 1.44 0.34 0.92

NET INCOME INCLUSIVE OF 
CAPITAL GAINS 14,114,000 4,346,699 9,233,998

EARNINGS PER SHARE
INCLUSIVE OF CAPITAL GAINS 1.44 0.44 0.92

TOTAL ASSETS 441,291,000 442,663,731 448,897,360

TOTAL LIABILITIES 288,869,000 301,361,724 310,567,045

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 152,422,000 141,302,007 138,330,315

OUTSTANDING SHARES 9,658,857 9,918,111 10,012,048

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK 15.78 14.25 13.82

SHARE PRICE 
(AS OF DECEMBER 31) 13.50 10.65 19.87

NUMBER OF VESSELS 161 161 15 

TOTAL DWT 1,422,754 1,422,754 1,315,427 

AVERAGE DEADWEIGHT 
AGE OF VESSELS 8.3 7.5 6.4

1 In March 1999 the Company took delivery of its 16th vessel -M/T Olympia- an Aframax
tanker of 107,327 dwt. The vessel was sold through a sale and leaseback arrangement in
October of 1999. M/T Olympia is time chart e red back from the buyers until December 2006
- the earliest date at which the leaseback arrangement may cease. MIF has an option to
p u rchase the M/T Olympia at the end of the seventh year of the lease.
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Results from Operations

Last year marked an unprecedented high in spot rates for all classes of tankers. From despair in 1999 the freight
market skyrocketed in 2000 and despite some sinister forecasts for a collapse in the autumn, rate levels were
maintained at very high levels. According to Fearnleys yearly average rates for crude carriers increased by
some 175% whereas product carriers enjoyed an improvement of about 90%. 

MIF had another re c o rd breaking year in 2000; the best ever in the Company’s corporate history. The Company
posted re c o rd net profit from operations, renewed or fixed on medium to long period employment (between 1-3
years) seven (7) vessels at market related rates (M/T Crux, M/T Libra, M/T Ve rgina II, M/T Olympia, M/T Panos G,
M/T Libert y, M/T Dion) and continued the fleet expansion with the order of three (3) Suezmax tankers for delivery
in 2002. In March 2001 a fourth new building vessel has been ord e red, an Aframax tanker for delivery also in
2002. The Aframax is the fifth in a series of sister vessels built in Japan since 1997. These new additions will
help the Company maintain one of the youngest, environmentally friendly double hull tanker fleets in the market,
will add versatility to the existing fleet and will serve the ever growing needs of the Company’s long term clients.
In total since 1997 the Company has ord e red nine (9) new building vessels aggregating 1.33 million dwt; 1
VLCC (Ve ry Large Crude Carrier), 3 Suezmaxes and 5 Aframaxes. All ord e red vessels are double hull i.e. (double
bottom/double side), and within their respective class sister vessels.  In the pre-1997 fleet the sister vessel concept
is also well observ e d .

By owning a modern and homogenous fleet MIF can offer its clients a comprehensive service. Operating costs
can be effectively contained and reduced through the bulk purchases of goods and services and by better
managing inventories. All these elements help create and maintain strong relationships with the customers and
better ensure that the Company will have a cargo waiting for delivery to steady customers. 

Net revenues were $85.75 million, up $18.10 million or 26.75% from 1999. Meanwhile, total operating
expenses amounted to $32.82 million compared to $29.22 million in 1999 reflecting the scheduled special
survey of two vessels and the unscheduled dry docking for special repairs and upgrading of four vessels as well
as increases in wages both on shore and off shore. The upswing in crude prices and the cut backs in production
initiated by OPEC reflected in elevated bunkering costs for the Company’s vessels that traded spot during all or
parts of last year. Net interest expenses for 2000 was $18.10 million from $13.57 million in 1999 reflecting
interest rate increases as administered by the Federal Reserve Board in the USA. 

All office and off s h o re personnel continued to focus in meeting the clients’ needs for efficient and safe
t r a n s p o rtation of their oil cargoes. Despite all scheduled and unscheduled repairs MIF employed the Company’s
fleet at 96.1% capacity during 2000.  The industry ’s trend to create pools and alliances in order to optimize
p e rf o rmance by reducing operating costs and enhancing revenues is best served with the Company’s association
with Tsakos Shipping & Trading SA (TST). TST founder and major shareholder of MIF, as well as the Company’s
technical and commercial manager is a major ship manager and operator of over 60 vessels curre n t l y. TST has
chosen to in-source all their staff and manages all its operations intern a l l y. With a seaborne staff of 2,500 and
a global shore staff of almost 300 TST provides a service to MIF at a lower cost than other ship management
companies. Both MIF and TST measure the efficiency and cost containment of the TST operation by comparing
the TST perf o rmance with the perf o rmance of other ship managers on sister vessels they manage separately. 

Income before depreciation was $34.76 million from $25.84 million in 1999, which was equivalent to $3.54
per share (based on a weighted average of 9.65 million shares outstanding) versus $2.59 per share (based on
a weighted average of 9.91 million shares outstanding). Net income from operations was $14.11 million
c o m p a red to $3.37 million in 1999, or $1.44 per share compared to $0.34 per share.  Net income inclusive
of capital gains was $14.11 million or $1.44 per share compared to $4.35 million in 1999, or $0.44 per share .

Net Book Value increased to $152.42 million from $141.30 million in 1999, a 7.9% increase, and book value
per share was $15.78 versus $14.25 in 1999, a 10.7% increase.
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Financial Analysis     

MIF enjoyed a record setting year in 2000, a year that started with low expectations for tanker rates, and
ended up being the best year tankers of all types and vintages have enjoyed since the early 70’s. In analyzing
the results of 2000 we should point out the following: 

1. An aggressive global move to enforce stringent safety regulations following the Erika incident changed the 
selection criteria of tankers for oil transportation. Maybe for the first time oil majors and charterers give
tanker quality, ship management and corporate stewardship at least equal consideration and weight as the
price they were willing to pay when selecting tankers to transport their cargoes. Professionally run shipping
companies with modern fleets and good operating records for safe and efficient oil transportation are given
preference in transporting the oil majors and charterers’ cargoes. Quality is also getting paid a premium
and this is reflected in the earnings of any tanker company with a modern fleet and a good operating
record. MIF with one of the youngest (8.3 years versus 13.0 years for the world’s tanker fleet) and most
technologically advanced tanker fleets in the market is already taking advantage of the opportunity.

2. M/T Maria Tsakos and M/T Athens 2004 operated during the year under a contract of consecutive voyages 
at marker related rates. M/T Olympia was also employed in the spot market until August 2000 when she
was fixed on a 3-year time charter (T/C). Together with M/T Toula Z which during last year earned the
maximum rate (of the agreed min. $19,000 - max. $25,000), all four sister vessels contributed 40% of the
net revenues and 74% of net income.

3. MIF continued to employ the fleet at almost maximum capacity (96.1% of available trading days).

4. MIF continued to exercise effective cost management absorbing increases in bunkering costs, higher voyage 
expenses from vessels trading in the spot market as well as unscheduled dry docking for special repairs and
vessel upgrading.

Revenues on time charter (T/C) equivalent basis increased by $18.10 million in 2000, or 26.7%, while
running expenses and overheads in the comparable period rose by $3.60 million, or 12.3% reflecting higher
voyage expenses for the vessels trading in the spot market – including bunkering – and all scheduled and
unscheduled repairs. In 2000, running expenses and overheads of $32.80 million were 38.3% of net
revenues versus 43.2% in 1999.

During 2000 the Company continued its planned expansion and fleet diversification by signing a contract for
t h ree (3) double bottom/double side Suezmax tankers for delivery in 2002. The vessels will be built at Hyundai’s
Samho yard in S.Korea. Shipping routes for Suezmax tankers are increasing with some ports expanding their
size to accommodate Suezmax tankers. In March 2001 the Company signed a contract for an additional double
bottom/double side Aframax tanker for delivery also in 2002. This is the fifth Aframax vessel the Company is
building at the Imabari yard in Japan; sister vessel to the four Aframaxes already built (M/T Toula Z, M/T Athens
2004, M/T Maria Tsakos, and M/T Olympia). These new vessel additions enhance the Company’s ability to
s e rvice the growing chartering needs of its long term clients and also help MIF maintain one of the youngest,
technologically advanced and versatile tanker fleets in the market.

The combined acquisition cost for all four new building vessels (three Suezmax plus one Aframax tanker) is
approximately $180 million. The Company paid in the period to 31/3/2001 $27.10 million in installments
for the three Suezmax under construction ($13.85 million in the period to 31/12/2000). The Company’s new
building program will be financed from the Company’s generated cash flow, selective asset sales and
complementary bank debt. An equity placement could also provide the means to finance the existing and future
fleet expansion program provided that conditions in the capital markets permit it.

There was no significant change in the Company’s debt finance arrangements. The Company continues to have
two loan facilities as follows: A revolving credit facility created in June 1998 for $250 million secured by first
preferred mortgages (on all the Company owned vessels excluding M/T Millennium). This facility was to rollover
existing debt and provide new finance for the acquisition of new vessels. As of 31/12/2000 and 31/3/2001
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the outstanding loan is $211.02 million. The second revolving credit facility is for $83.60 million of which
$58.80 million is secured by a first preferred mortgage over M/T Millennium. As of 31/12/2000 the
outstanding loan was $53.90 million. On 31/3/2001 the balance is $52.52 million.  In February 2000 the
Company entered into 2 swap agreements in order to secure additional benefits that might be set against
interest expense. In August 2000 due to the significant fall in US interest rates it was decided in the best interest
of the Company to terminate the aforementioned swap agreements. The total profit of the transaction amounted
to $0.64 million, and was applied to reduce interest expense.

Fair market value of the 15-vessel fleet (excluding M/T Olympia) based on December 2000 valuations was
$382.50 million compared to $307.25 million the year before (a 24.50% increase). All valuations are
given on a charter free basis. A minimal world fleet growth before late in the year combined with a
substantial increase in tonnage demand led to a sharp rebound in tanker vessel values. The 2000
valuations did not include any appreciation from the Company’s existing new building contracts. Net book
value (including vessel unamortized special survey and dry docking cost) of the 15-vessel fleet was
$377.40 million on 31/12/2000. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash flow from operating activities was $40.17 million, or $4.16 per share, compared to $31.80 million,
or $3.20 per share.  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period stood at $37.30 million, from $38.66
million at the end of 1999. The 2000 figure includes advances of $13.85 million for vessels under construction.

MIF accounts for the cost of dry docking and special surveys of its vessels on a deferred basis. The cost is
amortized up to the next special survey due date. Of the 16-vessel fleet, two (2) had a special survey
anniversary in 2000: M/T Hesnes and M/T Victory III. 

M/T Hesnes had a special survey obligation due in April 2000. The vessel was taken to Romania where she
completed all required special survey repairs in May 2000. The vessel’s next special survey obligation is in
April 2005.

M/T Victory III had a special survey obligation due in August 2000. A three-month extension was granted from
the vessel’s classification society to accommodate the vessel’s employment. The vessel was taken to Romania
where she completed all required special survey repairs in December 2000. The vessel’s next special survey
obligation is in August 2005.

Last August, while M/T Toula Z was transiting through the Houston channel with two (2) pilots on board, the
vessel collided with the container vessel Arktis Mistral that was at fault for the accident. The vessel unloaded
her cargo and subsequently underwent repairs in a shipbuilding/repair facility in the area of the US Gulf. The
Company is pursuing legally the Owners of C/V Arktis Mistral for all damages inflicted on M/T Toula Z. The
U.S. Coast Guard and the vessel’s charterers commended the Company and its technical manager (TST) for
their prompt, professional and efficient handling of the incident. MIF will collect from the Hull and Machinery
underwriters of M/T Toula Z the loss of hire insurance. 

In November M/T Vergina II while under berthing operation with a pilot on board and assisted by four (4) tugs
made contact with a pier in the Sao Sebastiao terminal in Brazil resulting in the rupture of a cargo tank causing
a minor oil spill. The vessel’s crew responded immediately transferring the cargo from the damaged tank to a
safe one. The managers of the vessel (TST) immediately activated their Emergency Response Team and
dispatched their representatives to supervise and control all operations on side. After discharging her cargo,
the vessel proceeded for tank cleaning and repairs in a local repair facility. Upon completion of all repairs the
vessel resumed her employment. 

From time to time, and as vessels in the fleet have their charters renewed or extended, Management might deem
it appropriate to perform provisional repairs (dry docking and/or upgrade repair works) that assist the vessels
in their trading patterns. These repairs usually take place ahead of schedule and are usually credited towards
the vessels’ future special survey obligations.
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M/T Tamyra underwent intermediate survey and upgrade repairs for Oil Majors approvals in Singapore during
the 4th quarter of 2000. Upon completion of the maintenance repairs the vessel was repositioned in the
Mediterranean area and started trading in the spot market.   

M/T Panos G underwent maintenance repairs in Trinidad during December 2000. The vessel has since the
repairs been employed by a state oil company at $22,000 per day for the first six (6) months with an option
for $25,000 for an additional 6-month period. These repairs will be credited towards the vessel’s upcoming
special survey in 2001.

There are two vessels in the current 16-vessel enterprise fleet with a special survey obligation in the year 2001:
M/T Vergina II in April and M/T Panos G in December.

Shareholders’ equity rose to $152.42 million from $141.30 million, a 7.9% increase in 2000.

The Company’s Board of Directors introduced a share buy-back program in December 2000. In total 165,900
shares have been bought back and retired by the Company at an average price (including broker commission)
of $12.42 per share. The Company intends to launch periodically a similar program in accordance with the
regulations of the Oslo Stock Exchange. The Company is allowed to buy-back stock for a period of one month
following the release of each quarter’s financials.  

Fleet Development

MIF started and finished the year operating a fleet of 16 tankers totaling 1,422,754 dwt. The average
deadweight age of the fleet as of March 2001 is 8.3 years versus an average world tanker fleet of 13.0 years.
The world’s tanker fleet according to Clarkson Research Studies, at year end 2000 amounted to 294.80 million
dwt. Approximately 28% of the fleet is currently over 20 years old. 

MIF has thus far concentrated primarily in Aframax crude carriers and product tankers. The enterprise fleet
consists today of seven (7) Aframaxes, eight (8) product carriers and one (1) VLCC. The product carriers are
divided according to their deadweight capacity into: Handymaxes (4 vessels with size below 45,000 dwt) and
Panamaxes (4 vessels between 60-70,000 dwt). During 2000 the Company signed a contract to build three (3)
Suezmax double bottom/double side crude carriers in Hyundai’s Samho yard in S.Korea. In March 2001 a
single new building Aframax double bottom/double side crude carrier has been commissioned to be built at the
Imabari yard in Japan. The Aframax crude carrier is the 5th in a series of sister vessels of 107,327 dwt Aframax
tankers built in Japan with excellent operating re c o rd and high desirability amongst their users. The Suezmax
c rude carriers of 164,000 dwt each, add versatility to the enterprise fleet and will service the ever growing needs
of the Company’s clients. Following these vessel additions, the enterprise fleet will consist of twenty (20) vessels
with a total deadweight of 2,022,081 dwt. To put the MIF fleet into perspective with the fleet of all other
independent ship owners, one has to consider that more than half of the world’s independent ship owners operate
between one and five tankers. The shipping industry has historically been fragmented and dominated by small
family owned companies, many of which operated aged tonnage for lower rates. In recent years however the
i n d u s t ry has embarked in the path of consolidation and growth with a stress to own and operate quality tonnage.
Those operators who adjust to the market reality will position themselves to take advantage of the new
o p p o rtunities that these changes present. MIF intends to continue growing organically as it has done since
inception in 1993 when the 4-vessel Company was formed, but also participate in the market’s consolidation.

The Company has at present eight (8) double bottom/double side vessels (50% of the fleet - M/T Millennium,
M/T Maria Tsakos - M/T Athens 2004 - M/T Toula Z - M/T Olympia, M/T Bregen - M/T Hesnes - M/T Vi c t o ry III)
4 double side/single bottom tankers (25% of the fleet - M/T Crux - M/T Libra, M/T Pella - M/T Dion) and 4 single
hull vessels (25% of the fleet- M/T Panos G - M/T Tamyra, M/T Libert y, M/T Ve rgina II). All 4 new building tankers
that will be delivered in 2002 are double bottom/double side taking to 12 (60% of the 20-vessel fleet) the number
of vessels that have double/double architecture/credentials. An analysis of the world’s tanker fleet reveals that
60% of the global fleet is single hull. In view of the proposed new MARPOL regulations the latest phase out
schedule indicates that about 95 million dwt or one - third of tankers capacity will be removed from the fleet
during 2002-2006. With the current order book equal to 60% of the replacement need the good rate
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environment that we have enjoyed in 2000 could continue until the world fleet is rebalanced. A modern
operator like MIF is well positioned to reap the benefits of a sustained good market environment. 

The four new building tankers when delivered in 2002 will help the Company maintain its status as the owner
and operator of one of the youngest (average deadweight age of 5.8 years) and most technologically
advanced tankers fleet in the market and will certainly enhance franchise value.

At year-end the Company’s fleet (including M/T Olympia, which is chart e red-in) comprised of:

N a m e B u i l t - D W T- D e s i g n Date Acquire d

M/T Millennium 1998 - 302,000 dwt  -  VLCC 22/09/1998
Double Bottom/Double Side

M/T Olympia 1999 - 107,327 dwt  -  Aframax Crude Carrier 25/03/1999
Double Bottom/Double Side

M/T Maria Tsakos 1998 - 107,327 dwt  -  Aframax Crude Carrier 14/07/1998
Double Bottom/Double Side

M/T Athens 2004 1998 - 107,327 dwt  -  Aframax Crude Carrier 12/03/1998
Double Bottom/Double Side

M/T Toula Z 1997 - 107,327 dwt  -  Aframax Crude Carrier 27/06/1997
Double Bottom/Double Side

M/T Vergina II 1991 - 90,916 dwt  -  Aframax Crude Carrier 24/12/1996

M/T Tamyra 1983 - 86,843 dwt  -  Aframax Crude Carrier 01/10/1993

M/T Panos G 1981 - 86,983 dwt  -  Aframax Crude Carrier 23/12/1996

M/T Victory III 1990 - 68,160 dwt  -  Panamax Product Carrier 31/12/1996
Double Bottom/Double Side

M/T Hesnes 1990 - 68,157 dwt  -  Panamax Product Carrier 22/04/1996
Double Bottom/Double Side

M/T Bregen 1989 - 68,157 dwt  -  Panamax Product Carrier 22/12/1995
Double Bottom/Double Side

M/T Liberty 1981 - 61,375 dwt  -  Panamax Product Carrier 23/12/1996

M/T Libra 1988 - 40,161 dwt  -  Handymax Product Carrier 20/12/1994
Double Side/Single Bottom

M/T Crux 1987 - 40,161 dwt  -  Handymax Product Carrier 04/08/1995
Double Side/Single Bottom

M/T Pella 1985 - 40,302 dwt  -  Handymax Product Carrier 16/11/1993
Double Side/Single Bottom

M/T Dion 1984 - 40,231 dwt  -  Handymax Product Carrier 14/10/1993
Double Side/Single Bottom
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The market value of the existing fleet (excluding M/T Olympia) as of 31/12/2000 was $382.50 million based
on valuations received from SSY (Simpson Spence & Young).

The chartering policy of the Company continues to focus on fixing the enterprise fleet on medium to long term
employment with major oil charterers in order to secure steady income streams. As last year unfolded and
market conditions improved more creative ideas have been introduced/revisited in an effort to bridge the gap
on the rate ideas between the owners and time charterers for period employment. Profit sharing schemes and
min-max formulas based on representative spot voyages were tried but as rates shot up it was too difficult to
find common ground and bring closer the minds of the owners and those of the time charterers. During 2000
approximately 70% of the fleet’s revenue came from fixed term employment and the rest from spot voyage
charters. However almost 80% of the net income came from the spot vessels and the rest from the fixed income
vessels. The Company employed for the full year M/T Maria Tsakos and M/T Athens 2004 in the spot market.
M/T Olympia started in the spot market before she was fixed to a 3-year time charter in August 2000. The rest
of the enterprise fleet was on period employment during the year. MIF successfully extended/renewed the
expiring/optional charter arrangements of M/T Panos G, M/T Ve rgina II, M/T Vi c t o ry III, M/T Libert y,
M/T Crux, M/T Libra and M/T Dion. M/T Millennium, M/T Toula Z, M/T Hesnes and M/T Bre g e n
continued to perf o rm under their long term employment chart e r s .

As of April 2001 the Company has three (3) vessels operating in the spot market (M/T Maria Tsakos, M/T Athens
2004 and M/T Tamyra). Seven (7) vessels have period employment that extends beyond 2001 (M/T Millennium,
M/T Olympia, M/T Toula Z, M/T Vi c t o ry III, M/T Bregen, M/T Libra, M/T Crux) and six (6) vessels will have their
c h a rters terminate either during or in the end of 2001 (M/T Ve rgina II, M/T Panos G, M/T Hesnes, M/T Libert y,
M/T Dion, M/T Pella). Management is confident that it will be able to continue renewing/extending the period
c h a rters of the vessels whose employment expire during the year at market related rates. The enterprise fleet is still
focusing in the following trading areas: the Atlantic Basin, the Caribbean/US Gulf and the Far East/Pacific Basin.

Only one vessel, M/T Millennium, is currently under longer employment charter (bare boat). The rest of the
enterprise fleet is employed either in the spot market or on medium to longer term period charters. More explicitly:

The M/T MILLENNIUM is on the third year of a 15-year bare boat charter to a premier Far Eastern Oil
Company at $25,500 per day or approximately $35,500 per day on T/C equivalent basis.

The M/T OLYMPIA traded in the spot market during the first eight (8) months of the year. Since August 2000
the vessel was fixed on a 3-year time charter for account of a major US Refinery. The vessel will earn $21,250
per day during the first year, $22,250 per day during the second and $23,250 per day during the third year
of her employment. 

The M/T MARIA TSAKOS continues to trade in the
US Gulf-Atlantic Basin on consecutive voyages for
account of a major U.S. Refinery. The vessel’s T/C
equivalent rate is derived based on market rates
prevailing two weeks prior to the beginning of each
voyage. The vessel’s net average in 2000 was
$31,500 per day on T/C equivalent basis. 

The M/T ATHENS 2004 continues to trade in the
Caribbean-US Gulf area under a contract of
a ff reightment (COA) for account of a major U.S.
R e f i n e ry. The vessel’s T/C equivalent rate is derived
based on market rates prevailing two weeks prior to the
beginning of each voyage. The vessel’s net average in
2000 was $32,150 per day on T/C equivalent basis.
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The M/T TOULA Z is about to complete a long term time
c h a rter for account of a major oil company earning a
daily rate of minimum $19,000 – maximum $25,000 per
d a y. The T/C rate is adjusted monthly by an independent
panel of shipbrokers and is derived from a formula based
on three re f e rence voyages. The time charter which
initially was for 3 years commenced in December 1997.
C h a rt e rers had an option to extend the period of
employment past the three years subject mutual agre e m e n t
with the owners of the vessel for the rate of the additional
period. An agreement on rates could not be reached. The
vessel will be re d e l i v e red to owners in July 2001. M/T
Toula Z after re d e l i v e ry will commence a 3-year time
c h a rter for account of a major U.S. Refinery at a daily rate
of minimum $22,000 – maximum $29,000 per day. 

The M/T VERGINA II is currently fixed on time charter for account of a state oil company for a period of 11
months at $19,000 per day. Charterers have the option to extend for an additional 11-month period at a
market related rate to be mutually agreed with the vessel's owners. 

The M/T TAMYRA is currently trading in the spot market for account various first class charterers earning on
average $18,000 per day on T/C equivalent basis.

The M/T PANOS G is currently fixed for account of a state oil company for an initial period of 6 months at
$22,000 per day. Charterers have the option for an additional 6-month period at $25,000 per day on T/C
equivalent basis.

The M/T VICTORY III is completing in May 2001 a second 6-month time charter for account of a state oil
company at $14,750 per day on T/C equivalent basis. Upon completion of the current charter the vessel has
been fixed for a 3-year employment with the same charterer at $27,500 per day on T/C equivalent basis. 

The M/T HESNES is in her final year of a 28-month time charter with a first class chart e rer earning currently $16,000
per day. The vessel’s employment expires at the end of July 2001. 

The M/T BREGEN has 1 more year (until February 2002) employment with a first class charterer earning
presently $16,000 per day.

The M/T LIBERTY is currently on a 1-year time charter until end of May 2001 for account of a state oil
company at $12,200 per day. Upon completion of the current charter management will try to engage the vessel
on a similar employment type at market related rates. 

The M/T LIBRA has entered the second year of a 3-year time charter for account of a major Far Eastern
charterer. The vessel is currently earning $10,950 per day. Charterers have the option for the third year at
$11,920 per day. If charterers exercise in full their option then, the vessel’s current chartering arrangement
terminates in December 2002. 

The M/T CRUX has entered the second year of a 3-year time charter for account of a major Far Eastern
charterer. The vessel is currently earning $10,950 per day. Charterers have the option for the third year at
$11,920 per day. If charterers exercise in full their option then, the vessel’s current chartering arrangement
terminates in December 2002. 

The M/T PELLA completed in February 2001 a 1-year time charter for account of a first class charterer at
$10,000 per day. The vessel is currently fixed on a 6-month time charter account a state oil company at
$21,000 per day. Charterers have the option for an additional 3-month period at the same rate. 
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The M/T DION is currently on a 1-year time charter until the end of May 2001 for account of a state oil
company at $13,700 per day. Management expects to renew the employment of the vessel with the same
charterer at market related rates.

During 2000, the enterprise fleet experienced a total of 230 days of off-hire for the scheduled repairs (special
survey and/or dry docking) of M/T Hesnes, M/T Victory III, the intermediate survey of M/T Tamyra, the
upgrade and maintenance repairs of M/T Panos G and the repairs due to the trading accidents M/T Toula Z
and M/T Vergina II had. Out of 5,856 days of potential days earning capacity, the MIF fleet operated 5,626
days, which equates to a 96.1% operating earnings day rate. The Company continues to be a low-cost, efficient
operator of modern tankers. The low off-hire of 2000 continues to compare favorably with the operating record
of previous years and fares well with the industry standards.  

The tanker industry is a business in transformation. Over the past decade, major oil companies have been
increasingly outsourcing their needs, preferring to protect themselves from market cycles as well as
environmental liability. In addition major oil companies are abandoning capital intensive businesses that do not
deliver their targeted returns on capital employed (ROCE). Before the Exxon Valdez accident major oil
companies controlled over 20% of the world’s tanker fleet. At the beginning of 2000 they control approximately
6%. Apart from outsourcing their oil transportation requirements, major oil companies have pushed the button
of consolidation in shipping by leading the way. Since 1998 we have seen the number of major oil companies
dramatically reduced from over 20 players with consistent worldwide presence to a handful of gigantic
corporations. The goal of these mega corporations is to contain operating expenses to increase their market
share, improve in other words corporate returns and create shareholder value. The fragmented ship owners
community is also changing. Although today the top 10 independent ship owners by tonnage account for only
20% of the market and more than half of the word’s independent owners operate only between one and five
tankers, the model of a small family owned company operating aged tonnage earning lower rates and focusing
primarily on the asset play is becoming extinct. Independent ship owners are "running" today the tanker market
since they possess almost 80% of the world’s tanker fleet. For newcomers the barriers of entrance in the tanker
market are prohibitive. The consolidated and bigger oil majors increasingly prefer to develop relationships with
trustworthy ship owners who manage modern large enough fleets that can meet their diverse needs for oil
transportation. Strict vetting requirements, adherence to stringent environmental regulations, professional, well
educated crew, modern vessels, a good safety record, efficient operation, a strong and reliable office team are
some of the bare minimum criteria that major oil companies have on their check list when auditing a shipping
company they intend to entrust their oil for transportation. 

Since July 1998, tankers are required to have a certified International Safety Management (ISM) system in
place. ISM, a safety standard enforced by the U.S. Coast Guard, emphasizes the safety of personnel, the
environment and the vessel’s equipment. In addition major oil companies conduct demanding pre-hire
inspections of independent tankers using trained experts located throughout the world. These inspections go

(Source: Clarkson Register - March 2001)

Top 10 of World Tanker Owners

# Owner Fleet (m. dwt)
1 Novorossiysk Shipping 0.82
2 Shipping Corp. India 0.74
3 Tsakos Shipping - MIF 0.72
4 Eletson Corp. 0.63
5 Aran Shipping & Trading 0.62
6 Pleiades Shipping Agency 0.62
7 Teekay Shipping Canada 0.54
8 China Shipping Tankers 0.53
9 Cosco Dalian 0.46

10 Sea Oil Inc 0.39

Panamaxes (60 - 79,999 dwt)
# Owner Fleet (m. dwt)
1 Teekay Shipping Canada 5.76
2 Tsakos Shipping - MIF 1.85
3 American Eagle Tankers 1.53
4 Ermis Maritime Corp. 1.43
5 Waterfront Shipping 1.42
6 General Maritime 1.40
7 Tanker Pacific Management 1.25
8 OSG Overseas Shipping 1.22
9 Jebsen KG 1.19

10 Polembros Shipping 1.19

Aframaxes (80 - 119,999 dwt)
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beyond government requirements and can extend to tanker crews and
management stru c t u re as well. In addition many tanker
owner/operators have committed to other voluntary quality standards.

Only those independent owners who endorse the safety culture, invest
in modern tonnage and continue to expand their fleets both in size and
quality either organically or through corporate acquisitions, alliances
and pools stand a chance to grow in today’s market and to benefit in
a stronger rate environment.  

Maybe for the first time following the Erika incident, major oil
companies and charterers give tanker quality, ship management and
corporate stewardship equal consideration and weight as the price
they were willing to pay when selecting tankers to transport their
cargoes. Cargo owners want to ensure that they are protected from all
the negatives of an oil spill and are therefore paying higher rates for
younger, quality and good managed ships. There is a growing
premium of new tonnage over old with the difference between old and
new VLCC rates at more than $15,000 per day.

In this operating environment we believe that MIF is well positioned to excel for the following reasons: 

1. A well-balanced portfolio of modern, environmentally friendly tankers desirable by its end-users.

2. A significant market position with a fleet of 20 tankers aggregating over 2.0 million dwt in a market that is 
still in the early stages of consolidation. MIF intends to further expand/grow the fleet pursuing the same
investment criteria and also actively participate in the market’s consolidation.

3. Strong relationships with major oil companies and charterers.

4. Association with TST one of the top ship management companies
that by being the Company’s founder, major shareholder and its
commmercial and technical manager provides MIF with cost-
effective ways to manage shipping, operating expenses, inventories
and risk. On the Panamax and Aframax sector the TST managed
fleet (which includes the MIF fleet) is in the top-3 deadweight-wise
among tanker companies worldwide, whereby it enjoys a very
strong commercial presence. 

5. A supportive shareholder base that has sponsored the Company
constantly since inception. The Company and its Board of Dire c t o r s
intend to continue building the Company’s franchise value following the
same guiding principles for corporate re t u rns and shareholder value.

6. A supportive group of commercial lenders that has assisted and
encouraged the Company’s organic expansion plans. 

The fleet’s Net Book Value at year-end 2000 was $377.40 million compared to $394.80 million in 1999. At
year-end the 15-vessel fleet (excluding M/T Olympia) was appraised at $382.50 million up from $307.25
million (15-vessel fleet excluding M/T Olympia) in 1999. The 2000 valuations are charter free and did not
include any appreciation from the Company’s existing new building contracts.



N E T  R E V E N U E S
(in million US$)

INCOME BEFORE
D E P R E C I A T I O N

(in million US$)

F L E E T  G R O W T H
(in million dwt)
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M I F  G R O W T H  C H A R T S

N E T  I N C O M E
(in million US$)



SHAREHOLDERS’  EQUITY
(in million US$)

BOOK VALUE  PER  SHARE

F L E E T  U T I L I Z A T I O N

19931 318 0 100.0% -   4 vessels

1994 1,472 47 96.8% -   5 vessels

1995 1,807 66 96.3% -   6 vessels

1996 2,446 32 98.7% -   7 vessels2

1997 4,203 76 98.2% - 12 vessels

1998 4,943 178 96.4% - 15 vessels

1999 5,756 171 97.0% - 16 vessels

2000 5,856 230 96.1% - 16 vessels

1 For 101 days of operation only
2 Represents only the seven vessels that operated for the full year, and excludes the four vessels added in late December 1996
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M I F  G R O W T H  C H A R T S

Year Total fleet Total fleet Percentage of fleet 
earning capacity days off-hire days utilization
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THE OIL MARKET

General Overview - Supply and Demand

After a year of solid growth in the world economy albeit clear signs of a slowdown in the latter part, economic
forecasts have lately been revised downwards. Concern about a soft or hard landing in the US economy and
its repercussions on other economies was and still is the hottest topic on the economic agenda of 2001. 

Global oil demand for the year as a whole was up 800,000 barrels per day or 1.1%. Due to the fore c a s t e d
slowdown in the global economy, 2001 oil demand growth is estimated between 1.4% to 2.0%. IEA’s upper
estimate of 2.0% growth equates to an additional 1.5 million barrels per day taking the total daily consumption
to 78.0 million barrels per day. North American consumption is expected to grow by about 0.3 mbpd to 24.3
mbpd after almost zero growth during 2000.  We s t e rn Europe is expected to see an increase of about 0.2 mbpd
to 15.2 mbpd after a slight decrease last year. Asian demand is expected to show an increase of over 0.5 mbpd
to 21.1 mbpd after an increase of 0.4 mbpd.

OPEC has successfully managed to push crude oil prices higher by instituting production cuts and tight control of agre e d
quotas among its members. The average Brent price in 2000 was about $28.40 per barrel against $18.30 in 1999.

F u t u re prices for oil are currently (1Q2001) pointing downwards with the WTI down approximately $3 one year
ahead, down $6 two years ahead and down $8 five years ahead (compared with the current price as of
25/4/2001 of about $26.50). Much of course depends on general economic development and OPEC’s success
in controlling the oil market. 

World crude oil production (excluding NGL, OPEC condensates and processing gains) according to Energ y
Intelligence Group (EIA) increased by 3.5% in 2000. Total OPEC output increased by 4.9% whereas Middle East
OPEC increased by 6.8%. The production volume varied strongly through the year: for example the Middle East
p roduction in November was 14.6% higher than one year before giving room for a very strong tonnage demand.

The oil production in the USA remained flat whereas imports increased by 0.4% to about 8.75 mbpd. China‘s
productions was also flat at 3.23 mbpd whereas crude oil imports to China doubled to about 1.4 mbpd.  This
was the most remarkable feature in the oil trade in 2000. It is fair to say that China was a big mover in the
tanker market and without its big increase in imports the tanker market would not have been as exciting.

Tanker demand reflects the requirement to transport oil, varying from regionally oriented trades where
differences between supply and consumption within a particular region dictate to those transporting the oil the
freight rates. Demand for crude oil tanker transportation is determined by volume (tons) and distance (ton-miles).
The estimate for world seaborne crude oil trade (based on import figures) show a modest volume increase of
0.8% in 1999 (1,548 million tons) and 4.1% in 2000 (1,612 million tons). It is expected the volume to increase
by 3.0% in 2001 (1,660 million tons) and 2.4% in 2002 (1,700 million tons).

The ton-miles increase in crude oil imports is estimated at 4.6% in 2000 (8,340 billion ton miles) to be followed
by 3.5% (8,630 btm) and 3.0% (8,890 btm) in the next couple of years. Oil products ton-miles rose by 3.5%
last year (2,080 btm) and is expected to show similar growth this year and increase about 2.5% in 2002
(2,210 btm). Total crude oil and oil-products ton-miles are expected to increase by 3.5% in 2001 (10,785 btm)
and 2.9% in 2002 (11,100 btm).
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Worldwide Oil Production and Demand
(millions of barrels per day)

D e m a n d P e r centage Change
1998     1999     2000    2001E 99/98    00/99   01E/00

North America 23.1 23.9 24.0 24.3 3.5% 0.4% 1.3%
Western Europe 15.3 15.1 15.0 15.2 -1.3% -0.7% 1.3%
Asia Pacific 8.4 8.6 8.6 8.7 2.4% 0.0% 1.2%
Total OECD 46.8 47.6 47.6 48.2 1.7% 0.0% 1.3%

Former Soviet Union 4.1 4.0 4.1 4.2 -2.4% 2.5% 2.4%
Central + Eastern Europe 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
China 4.2 4.5 4.8 5.0 7.1% 6.7% 4.2%
Other Asia 6.8 7.1 7.2 7.4 4.4% 1.4% 2.8%
Other Non-OECD 11.2 11.4 11.7 11.7 1.8% 2.6% 0.0%
Total Non-OECD 27.3 28.0 28.8 29.3 2.6% 2.9% 1.7%

Total World Demand  74.1 75.6 76.4 77.5 2.0% 1.1% 1.4%

P r o d u c t i o n P e r centage Change
1998     1999     2000    2001E 99/98    00/99   01E/00

United States 8.4 8.1 8.1 8.1 -3.6% 0.0% 0.0%
Canada 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.8 -3.7% 3.8% 3.7%
Europe - North Sea 6.7 6.8 6.8 6.7 1.5% 0.0% -1.5%
Pacific 0.7 0.7 0.9 0.8 0.0% 28.6% -11.1%
Total OECD 18.5 18.2 18.5 18.4 -1.6% 1.6% -0.6%

OPEC 28.0 26.6 27.9 28.2 -5.0% 4.9% 1.1%
Former Soviet Union 7.3 7.5 7.9 8.3 2.7% 5.3% 5.1%
China 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Mexico 3.5 3.4 3.5 3.7 -2.9% 2.9% 5.7%
Other Non-OECD 13.4 13.5 14.0 14.3 0.7% 3.7% 2.1%
Processing Gains 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 6.3% 0.0% 5.9%
Total Non-OECD 57.0 55.9 58.2 59.5 -1.9% 4.1%     2.2%

Total World Supply    75.5 74.1 76.7 77.9 -1.9% 3.5% 1.6%

Source: Energy Information Administration/Short-Term Energy Outlook March 2001.
Minor discrepancies with other EIA published data are due to rounding.
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WORLD TANKER FLEET

2000 was a bonanza year for tankers. It started slowly, below expectations more or less in direct continuation
of the difficult market we experienced during 1999. Following the Erika incident a lot of tanker tonnage was
deleted in a short period of time and this development gave room during the second half of the year to the best
tanker rate levels we have seen since the early 70’s.

Environmental demands for safe modern tonnage are driving new regulations that will require significant
renewal of the world’s tanker fleet during the next 2-5 years. These environmental regulations are already
applying steady pressure on ship supply. Tanker demand is increasing faster than global oil demand due to
increased production from remote regions leading to long haul voyages and more tonnage requirements. 

Fleet Development

A c c o rding to Clarkson Research Studies the world tanker fleet grew during 2000 by 7.90 million dwt (an incre a s e
of 3.1%) to a total of 294.8 million dwt. In comparison, between 1998-1999 the fleet grew in size by 1.1%.

During the year 156 tankers aggregating 21.0 million dwt were delivered compared to 19.0 million dwt in
1999. New building orders for oil tankers increased strongly from 14.9 million dwt in 1999 to 38.5 million dwt
in 2000. This was the highest volume since 1973 when an incredible volume of 105.2 million dwt was ord e re d .

The tanker order book increased from 39.0 million dwt to 56.5 million dwt or 20.1% of the existing fleet. The
order book for 2001 stands at 17.1 million dwt and at 24.1 million dwt in 2002. The order book for 2003
stands at 14.7 million dwt. A fleet analysis shows that 60% of the global tanker fleet is single hull. In light of
the proposed new MARPOL regulations the latest phase out schedule indicates that about 95 million dwt of
tankers will be removed from the fleet during 2002-2006. It is therefore interesting to note that the current order
book equals about 60% of the replacement need before provision for growth in demand.

2 0
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At the beginning of 2000 major oil companies owned 6% of the world fleet with a further 15% owned by
governments.  Independent ship owners currently own almost 80% of the world’s tanker fleet. The oil majors
increasingly prefer to develop relationships with trustworthy ship owners who manage fleets large enough to
meet their needs. As a result independent ship owners have been consolidating by means of alliances, pools
and corporate acquisitions in order to provide a more comprehensive service towards their clients.

Demolition

The same old story repeated itself in 2000. Just as quickly as freight rates went up (spring of 2000), sales for
demolition came down. During the first seven months of the year 11.4 million dwt were sold for demolition with
only 2.2 million dwt additionally sold during the last five months of the year. In total 13.6 million dwt were
scrapped in 2000 versus 16.6 million dwt in 1999. 

More specifically 25 large tankers, 21 VLCCs and 4 ULCCs were sent to the scrap yards compared to 35 units
the year before. Sales of Suezmaxes were also reduced from 26 ships in 1999 to 21 in 2000. Aframaxes and
Panamaxes went down from 30 vessels to 21 ships while the smaller units of 10-50,000 dwt actually showed
quite a surprising increase from 21 units in 1999 to 72 ships in 2000 but this segment comprises a trading
fleet of nearly 250 units of 25 years of age or older. The average age of all vessels scrapped was as high as
27 years which was two years more than the average in the previous year. There are conflicting views as to
what will happen in 2001 and in the period up until 2004. There are those who believe that if the freight market
continues to be strong these numbers will be lower in 2001. There are others who claim that the new
International Maritime Organization (IMO) rules would require aged single hull tonnage to be scrapped by
January 2003. If the proposed regulations are formally accepted in April 2001, 28% of the current tanker fleet
will have to be scrapped between 2003 and 2005. Since the current order book is filled until 2003, there is
no way to avert a squeeze in supply caused by the forthcoming IMO rule changes. 

Demolition prices started the year at around $150-160/ldt for standard ships. Prices fell initially ahead of the
local (Indian subcontinent) state budgets announced end February but when they came out more or less neutral
prices turned upwards again. Through the year levels improved up to around $185-190/ldt in October before
slipping to $170/ldt at year end. All in all prices are now back to more normal levels compared to where they
were at the end of 1998 and through most of 1999.

India is still the market leader in demolition with a market share of 42% followed by China, which over the last
few years has taken significant market share. Normally Chinese breakers are competitive only when prices are
low and even when India/Bangladesh are offering $170-180/ldt China will only pay about $150/ldt. It will
be interesting to see if China can keep up such market share -27% in 2000- which they have built up during
the years of low prices, now that going prices are back to higher levels. Bangladesh now is third with a 21%
market share while Pakistan diminished even further with only a 5% market share in 2000.
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VESSEL PRICES

While prices for tankers remained stable in 1999 they increased substantially in 2000, especially for the
Aframax and Suezmax sizes increasing more than 20%. Price levels for VLCCs and product tankers increased
by about 12% and 14% respectively.

New buildings 

Year 2000 saw a record number of new building orders for tankers. Almost 39 million dwt were ordered
equivalent to about 300 vessels. This is an increase of 15 million dwt from the year before. The boom in the
tanker market and the subsequent higher second hand values attracted owners first to Korea then to Japan when
the 2002 and 2003 deliveries in Korea were sold out and prices started to increase. In total 156 tankers of
21.0 million dwt were delivered during the year versus 161 tankers of 19.1 million dwt in 1999.

South Korea maintained its position as the number one new building nation, surpassing Japan for the second
year. During the year most major Korean yards (Hyundai, Samsung, Daewoo and Hanjin) sold remaining berths
in 2001 and 2002 and some major yards also sold the majority of their 2003 slots.

The total number of orders received by Japanese yards totaled 14.5 million gt, the largest volume since 1973.
In addition to full order books in Korea, the development of the JPY against the USD increased Japanese yards’
competitiveness further.

The table below is based on indications for standard tankers and is not inclusive of contracts placed for tanker
with demanding specifications, whose prices would be considerably higher.

Estimated New Building Tanker Prices

Type Size 1997 1998 1999 2000
(dwt) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)

Products 40,000 31.50 26.00 26.00 29.50

Aframax 95,000 41.00 34.50 33.00 41.50

Suezmax 140,000 52.00 44.00 42.50 52.50

VLCC 280,000 83.00 73.00 69.00 77.00
(Source: Clarkson Research Studies)

At December 2000, the orderbook was the highest in the decade at 48.5m dwt, or 17.1% of the total fleet,
exceeding 1997 levels of 45.7m dwt and 1991 levels of 44.8m dwt.

Second hand values

A minimal fleet growth before late in the year combined with a substantial demand increase, forecasted and
o b s e rved for 2000 was bound to show a sharp rebound on the pricing of second hand vessels. First quarter was
relatively slow however since then we have witnessed a continuous upturn in rates and values for all ship types
and vintages. The crude sector had an earlier start than the product tanker segment. Lack of enough willing sellers
during the first half of the year led to strong focus on new buildings, which at the time were still competitively priced.
G reeks who historically have been focused players in the second hand market dominated the new building scene.

Approximately 185 ship sales were recorded: 30 were VLCCs, 30 Suezmaxes, 50 Aframaxes and a little over
70 handysize units. This volume represents 50% up from 1999. Greeks acquired no less than 50% of these
vessels. Prices developed along a steep curve however the unquestionable winner was the Aframax type of
vessel which went up more than 50% in value from year start to year end.
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Next on the list came the VLCCs which experienced a 30% price increase. Close thereafter came the
Suezmaxes within a 25-35% range. Finally modern product tankers are still strong in demand and their values
are still firming. During the year however they experienced price increases ranging from 15-25%.

Estimated Second Hand Tanker Prices

Type Size 1997 1998 1999 2000
(dwt) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)

Products – 5 years old 40,000 27.00 21.00 20.00 24.50

Products – 1980 built 40,000 14.00 7.50 7.50 7.00

Aframax – 5 years old 95,000*# 36.00 23.50 26.00 40.00

Aframax – 1980 built 85,000 12.00 9.00 5.00 10.00

Suezmax – 5 years old 140,000 44.00 36.50 35.00 49.00

VLCC – 5 years old 280,000 65.00 50.00 53.00 71.00

* 85,000 dwt to 5/98  # built 1994 double bottom/double side with (center line bulkhead)

(Source: Clarkson Research Studies)

VESSEL  EARNINGS

Tanker Demand

Last year was one of those rare times when a number of important factors and market fundamentals aligned to pro d u c e
a boom in tanker rates which was sustained throughout the year and which appear to set the tone for 2001 as well. 

Oil demand averaged 76.4 mbpd in 2000. This was 0.8 mbpd or 1.1% higher than in 1999. US demand
remained stable, Europe slightly decreased while Asia accounted for most of the increase (Japan experienced a
modest decrease of 1.5% while S.Korea an increase of about 3.0% and China about 7.0% growth in oil demand).

However the single most important event that occurred late in 1999 and marked the industry in 2000 and most
probably in the years to come, was the sinking of M/T Erika a 1975 built tanker off the French coast in Brittany
in December 1999. The Erika incident changed the attitude of all market participants (oil majors, charterers,
ship owners, ship managers/ship operators, classification societies etc) towards the selection of tankers for oil
transportation. An aggressive global move was put into effect following the Erika incident/oil spill to enforce
phase out guidelines for single hull tankers. Due to the danger of oil pollution all single hull ships over 25 years
of age are now considered environmental hazards and will most likely be phased out starting in 2003. As a
result 28% of the world’s tanker fleet will be in danger of necessary retirement causing a shortage of supplied
tonnage unless a sufficient amount of new tonnage is delivered to balance the supply squeeze. At the same time
long term global oil demand forecasted to grow on average 1.75% per annum will require more tanker
tonnage. All these factors indicate that the good freight rate environment will continue well into 2003-2004. 

The Erika incident brought home perhaps for the first time the importance of giving tanker quality at least equal
weight as price when tankers are selected to transport cargoes for oil majors/charterers. And it made sure that
tankers too old to be trading or not well maintained would be removed from the fleet.

New records for daily returns on spot voyages caused ship owners to drastically revise and increase their rate
ideas for period business as the year 2000 unfolded. Towards the end this discrepancy created a gap that was
very difficult to bridge. 
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Very Large Crude Carriers (VLCC)

VLCCs had a wonderful year in
2000. Rates were the highest ever
last year reaching nearly $100,000
per day. The average rate for
voyages from the Middle East Gulf
to the West was WS 91.6 that was
almost twice as high as the lowly
WS 46.2 registered in 1999. In the
Middle East Gulf-Japan route the
i m p rovement was even more
i m p ressive with the average for
2000 being at WS 113.25 when
the average for 1999 was only WS
50.8. One of the factors which
helped VLCC owners to pressure
c h a rt e rers to pay higher fre i g h t
rates in 2000 was the increase in
ton-miles. 

Cargoes were going on longer voyages keeping vessels away from the spot market for longer periods reducing
thus the vessels available for charter. The trend of cargoes moving from West Africa to East which came into its
own in 1999 continued and increased in the year 2000 with India and China acting as significant importers
of crude oil in this route. 

Suezmax

Suezmaxes made a full and healthy
recovery in 2000. Suezmax rates
from West Africa were never as
good as they were in 2000. Ever
since a market for Suezmax tankers
existed in the Atlantic basin rates
have for most part been between
WS 50 and WS 110. The average
rate for a 130,000 metric tons
Suezmax lifting from West Africa to
East Coast of the United States East
was WS 162.50 in 2000 with the
highest monthly average reaching
WS 233. Rates have never before
come close to these levels except
when Suezmaxes trading from the
Arabian Gulf to Europe in 1973 achieved levels in excess of WS 300. Just to place things into perspective the
average for 1999 was WS 75.3 and for 1998 was WS 82.5.

The post Erika effect, the concentration of the world’s Suezmax fleet in the hands of very few owners -six or
eight owners or pools- and the fact that the Suezmax fleet hardly increased during 2000 having gone from 284
to 288 vessels, did not give charterers any hope of an increasing degree of choice and rendered them
powerless against the rate ideas of the Suezmax owners.

The good freight rates enjoyed for Suezmaxes in West Africa spread in other markets as well. Rates for North
Sea and Mediterranean liftings largely followed the levels recorded in West Africa.
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Aframax

Aframaxes also participated heavily
in the exciting tanker market we
have seen in 2000. The size of the
Aframax fleet did not change
significantly during the year. After
accounting for demolition there was
only an increase of three units
during 2000. In the Mediterranean
the yearly average for voyages from
N o rth Africa to Euro p e a n
M e d i t e rranean destinations was
WS 189.75 and in the North Sea
the yearly average for voyages to
Continent was WS 183.75 both on
the basis of an 80,000 metric tons
lifting. In 1999 these averages did
not reach WS 100. It became
increasingly difficult for older Aframaxes to find a welcoming reception in the European market and the high
rates seen throughout the year reflected the inability of older units to draw down rate levels in the post Erika
climate. The average rate for Aframaxes in the Caribbean during 2000 basis 70,000 metric tons lifting was
WS 232, 100 WS points more than the 1999 average. December was a particular active month with the
monthly rate average reaching WS 360.

Clean Market - Products tankers

The market for product carriers larg e
and small started well and ended
superbly in 2000. It basically kicked
o ff at the beginning of  August when
rates for 55,000 metric tons liftings
f rom Arabian Gulf to Japan re a c h e d
the WS 260-265 level that equates
to approximately $25,000 on a
round voyage basis. At the end of
the summer 75,000 metric tons
achieves rates between WS 230-
235 that equates to $32,000 per
d a y. During December the market
really took off and LR units obtained
as much as $60,000 per day while
smaller LR units obtained $37,000
per day. 

In the We s t e rn Hemisphere the market for gasoline and heating oils from Nort h West Europe to the USA
commenced as slowly as it ended in 1999 but at the time April arrived the market rebounded. Quantities
i n c reased from the typical 33,000 metric tons to lots of 35-37,000 metric tons. Rates during this period moved
f rom WS 180 to WS 200. During December the market saw 43,000 metric tons of gasoil fixed from Continent
to the East Coast of the USA at WS 399 which was the highest done during the year. A similar market developed
in the Caribbean as increased interest for summer gasoline from Venezuela pushed rates for 28,500 metric ton
movements from WS 230 to WS 270-275 during the month of April. But in December in the Caribbean like in
most areas rates went through the roof with up coast liftings goings at WS 450 level. 2 5
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

ASSETS
Notes 2000 1999

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,6 37,298 38,664
Accounts receivable: Trade 2 2,476 2,729

Insurance claims 7 4,236 140
Other 8 2,046 1,642

Inventories 2,9 1,331 1,905
Prepayments 10 849 573

Total current assets 48,236 45,653

Fixed assets
Vessels at cost 2,11 452,956 452,594
Accumulated depreciation 2,11 (86,839) (66,188)
Net book value 366,117 386,406
Vessel under construction 2,12 13,852 -

Total fixed assets 379,969 386,406

Deferred charges, net of amortization
Drydocking, special survey costs 2,13 11,246 8,439
Loan expenses 2,13        1,840        2,166

13,086 10,605
Total assets 441,291 442,664
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Notes 2000 1999

Current liabilities
Accounts payable trade 12,640 8,174
Sundry liabilities and accruals 14 7,680 5,676
Unearned revenue 2        2,191 1,855

22,511 15,705
Long-term debt, current portion 2,15 20,463 16,192
Total current liabilities 42,974 31,897

Long-term debt, net of current portion 2,15 244,459 267,789
Deferred income 2,16 1,436 1,676
Total liabilities 288,869 301,362

Commitments and contingencies 17,18 - -

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock 21 9,659 9,918
Paid-in surplus 22 107,497 110,232
Retained earnings 35,266 21,152
Total shareholders’ equity 152,422 141,302
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 441,291 442,664
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Notes 2000 1999
REVENUES
Hire and freights 2,19 111,276 89,157
Less: Voyage expenses 2 (20,701) (17,981)

Commissions 23 (4,821)       (3,522)
Net revenue on time charter 
equivalent basis 85,754 67,654

EXPENSES
Vessels’ operating expenses 2,23 (28,998) (25,411)
Depreciation 2,11 (20,651) (21,495)
Management fees 23 (3,132) (3,053)
Board of director’s and officers’ fees 23 (125) (165)
General and administrative (564) (591)
Provision for doubtful receivables 2            (75) -

(53,545) (50,715)

Operating income 32,209 16,939

Other income/(expenses)
Interest (expenses)/income, net 15,24 (18,095) (13,570)
Gain on sale of vessel 2 -           978
Net income for the year 14,114 4,347

Earnings per share, before depreciation *
Basic          3.54          2.59
Diluted          3.52 -

Earnings per share, after depreciation *
Basic          1.44 0.435
Diluted          1.43 -

* Earnings per share before and after depreciation expressed in US Dollars.
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

2000 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income for the year 14,114 4,347

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 20,651 21,495
Amortization: Deferred charges 2,463 1,441

Loan expenses 326 518
Gain on sale of vessel - (978)
Deferred income (240) -

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables: Trade 253 28

Insurance claims (4,096) 400
Other (404) (1,054)

Inventories 574 (1,020)
Prepayments (276) 224
Accounts payable-trade 4,466 2,706
Other payable - (247)
Sundry liabilities and accruals 2,004 3,527
Unearned revenue 336 417
Net cash provided by operating activities 40,171 31,804

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of vessels/additions (362) (36,281)
Net proceeds from sale of vessel - 37,216
Vessels under construction (13,852) 3,450
Deferred charges-drydocking, special survey (5,270) (3,440)
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (19,484) 945

Cash flows from financing activities:
Common stock (259) (94)
Paid-in surplus (2,735) (1,281)
Deferred loan expenses - (634)
Proceeds from long-term debt/refinancing - 83,600
Principal payments/refinancing on long term debt (19,059) (100,885)
Net cash used in financing activities (22,053) (19,294)

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,366) 13,455
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 38,664 25,209
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 37,298 38,664

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid 20,376 10,850
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Common P a i d - i n Retained Total
Stock Surplus Earnings

Balance December 31, 1998 10,012 111,513 16,805 138,330

Net income - - 4,347 4,347
Share buyback and retirement (94) (1,281) - (1,375)
Balance December 31, 1999 9,918 110,232 21,152 141,302

Net income - - 14,114 14,114
Share buyback and retirement (259) (2,735) - (2,994)
Balance December 31, 2000 9,659 107,497 35,266 152,422
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

1. Organization and nature of operations

Maritime Investment Fund Limited was incorporated in Bermuda on July 16, 1993 and on June 16, 1996
was renamed to MIF Limited.  Its principal activity is the acquiring and operating of new building and
second hand vessels.  MIF conducts its operations through the vessel owning subsidiaries whose principal
activity is the ownership and operation of tanker vessels.  The Company’s vessels operate worldwide,
carrying oil for many of the world’s leading charterers.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

A. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Accounting
Standards ("IAS"). These consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
basis of accounting.

B. Principles of consolidation

Subsidiary undertakings, which are those companies in which the Company directly or indirectly,
has an interest of more than one half of the voting rights or otherwise has power to exercise control
over their operations, have been consolidated.  Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which effective control transferred to the Company and are no longer consolidated from the date of
disposal.  All intercompany transactions between group companies have been eliminated.

A listing of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned, is set out in Note 3 below.

C. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Accounting Standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Vessels and depreciation

Vessels are stated at cost which includes the vessels’ contract price, initial special survey and
drydocking costs, as well as, finance charges and commissions relating to the acquisition of the
vessels.  In addition subsequent expenditures  for major improvements and upgradings are also
capitalized, when they extend the life, increase  the capacity or improve the efficiency or safety of
the vessels.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis by reference to the vessel’s cost, age and scrap
value as estimated at the date of acquisition.  Depreciation is calculated over the vessel’s estimated
useful life which is assumed to be between 25 and 26 years from the vessel’s original construction.
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies, cont’d

E. Vessels under construction

The amounts included for vessels under construction represent the amounts paid by the Company in
accordance with the terms of purchase agreements and, therefore, do not represent the cost of
construction as at the balance sheet date.  Borrowing costs incurred to finance the construction of
new building vessels are capitalized if incurred.

F. Disposal of vessel

It is the Company’s policy to dispose of vessels when suitable opportunities occur and not necessarily to
keep them until the end of their useful life.  Accord i n g l y, gains or losses on disposal of vessels are determ i n e d
by re f e rence to their carrying amount and are included when determining the net income for the year.

G. Impairment of assets

An impairment of an asset held for use is recognized by the Company when the asset’s carrying
value exceeds its recoverable amount.

The management prepares cash flows projections (discounted), when the fair market value of the
Company’s vessels is below the book value.  In circumstances where the estimated future discounted
cash inflows expected from the continuing operation of the vessel exceed their carrying amount, no
impairment loss is recognized.  At December 31, 2000 and 1999 there was no impairment loss.

H. Deferred charges

(a) Repairs and maintenance

Expenditure for routine repairs and maintenance of the vessels is charged against income in
the year incurred.  The cost of drydocking and special survey is deferred and amortized up to
the next special survey due date which is required  every five years.  Such cost includes daily
running expenses, components related to the period of such surveys, including the ballast
period, i.e. crew cost, insurance, bunkers and lubricants.  During 2000, an amount of US$461
(1999: US$462) has been allocated to deferred charges which is related to the running
expenses of vessels during their drydocking and special survey.

(b) Loan expenses

Loan arrangement fees and legal fees are deferred and amortized using the effective interest
rate method over the period of the borrowings.

I. Foreign currencies

In view of the international nature of the Company’s operations, the amounts shown in these
financial statements are presented in US Dollars.
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies, cont’d

I. Foreign currencies, cont’d

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to US Dollars at
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses in foreign currencies are
translated at exchange rates ruling at the date of transaction.  The resulting translation gains and
losses are taken to the income statement.

J. Inventories

Inventories consist of the cost of bunkers, lubricants, provisions and stores remaining on board the
vessels at year end which are valued at the lower of cost, as determined on the first-in, first-out basis,
and net realisable value except for the cost of stores which has been estimated by the management
based on last December invoices cost.

K. Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers time deposits or other certificates purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

L. Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are carried at anticipated realisable value.  An estimate is made for
doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end.  Bad debts are
written off during the year in which they are identified.

M. Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenues are derived principally from either contracts that provide for the use of one
of the Company’s vessels over a specified period of time ("Time Charter Contracts") or contracts for
the  transport of a specified quantity of a specified material between two or more specified ports
("Specific Voyage Contracts").

Revenue related to Time Charter Contracts is recognized on actual days chartered within the period.
Revenue related to Specific Voyage Contracts is recognized on the percentage of completion basis.
Revenues earned under both types of contracts are included in the consolidated statements of
income in "Hires and freights".

Unearned revenue represents revenue applicable to the period after the balance sheet date.

N. Operating and voyage expenses

Operating expenses consist of all expenses relating to the operation of the vessels, including
crewing, repairs and maintenance, insurance, stores, lubricants and miscellaneous expenses such
as communications and amortization of drydocking  and special survey costs.  Voyage expenses
comprise all expenses relating to particular voyages, including bunkers, port expenses, canal tolls
and agency fees.  Voyage expenses also include hire paid on time-chartered vessel M/T Olympia
amounting to US$6,979 for the year ended December 31, 2000 (1999: US$924).
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies, cont’d

O. Provisions

P rovisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a re s u l t
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of re s o u rces embodying economic re s o u rces will be
re q u i red to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

The Company participates in Protection and Indemnity (P&I) insurance coverage plans, provided by
mutual insurance societies known as P&I clubs.  Under the terms of these plans, participants may be
required to pay additional premiums to fund operating deficits incurred by the clubs ("back calls").
Obligations for back calls are accrued annually.

P. Leases

(a) Accounting for leases – where the Company is the lessee

The Company is not a party to a finance lease under which it assumes substantially all the
benefits and risks of ownership.

Leases of vessels under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases.  Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the income statement based on the charter party terms.

(b) Accounting for leases – where the Company is the lessor

It is the Company’s policy to charter its vessels to first class charterers under short to long-term
charters.  Long-term charters are entered into by the Company principally to achieve maximum
vessel employment and mitigate the risk of future fluctuations in freight rates. 

None of the Company’s vessels are chartered out under finance type leases and accordingly
vessels are included in non-current assets and are depreciated over their expected useful lives
as stated under the policy note Vessels and depreciation.

Q. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income, before and after depreciation by
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

For the diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is
adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares.  The Company has one
category of potentially dilutive ordinary shares: share options.

R. Borrowings

L o n g - t e rm borrowings are recognized initially as the proceeds received. Transaction costs incurred are
d e f e rred and amortized using the effective interest rate method over the period of the borro w i n g s .

FS 11

M I F  L I M I T E D  -  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  A N D  A C C O U N T S  2 0 0 0

3 8



MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies, cont’d

S. Financial instruments

(a) Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, trade 
receivables and payables, other receivables, payables and long-term debt.  The particular
recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with
each item.

(b) The Company is also party to financial instruments that reduce exposure to fluctuations in interest rates.
These instruments, which comprise interest rate swap agreements, are not recognized in the
financial statements on the inception date.  The purpose is to enhance the predictability of
financing cost and secure gains for the Company that may be set against interest expense
although they may result in losses, which would increase overall financial costs.

Interest rate swap agreements, therefore, effectively protect the Company from movements in
interest rates.  Any differential paid or received on an interest rate swap agreement is
recognized as a component of interest revenue or expense.  Gains and losses on early
termination of interest rate swaps or on repayment of the borrowing are taken to the statement
of income upon such termination.

(c) Credit risk.  Certain of the Company’s vessels have been chartered out for periods up to 15 
years in order to achieve maximum vessel employment and mitigate the risk of future
fluctuations in hire and freight rates.
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

3. Companies comprising the Group

Company Vessel's name Country of Income Statement
Incorporation

A. Holding Company 2000 1999 
MIF Limited Bermuda 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12

B. Subsidiaries
Dimena Shipping Co Ltd M/T TAMYRA Cyprus 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Divino Maritime Co Ltd M/T DION Cyprus 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Estoril Maritime Co Ltd M/T PELLA Cyprus 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Capias Pte Limited M/T NOL LIBRA Singapore - 1/1-7/12
Jersey Shipping Co Ltd M/T LIBRA Liberia 1/1-31/12 7 /1 2 -3 1 /1 2
Astrarius Pte Limited M/T NEPTUNE CRUX Singapore - 1/1-7/12
Annapolis Shipping Co Ltd M/T CRUX Liberia 1/1-31/12 7 /1 2 -3 1 /1 2
Horizana Shipping Co Ltd M/T BREGEN Malta 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Fortitude Shipping Ltd M/T HESNES Malta 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Soumelia Marine Co Ltd M/T PANOS G Cyprus 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Malgara Marine Co Ltd M/T LIBERTY Cyprus 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Grevia Marine Company Limited M/T VERGINA II Cyprus 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Klera Navigation Company Limited M/T VICTORY III Cyprus 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Noble Shipping Enterprises Inc M/T TOULA Z Liberia 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Westpoint Shipping Co Ltd M/T OLYMPIA * Liberia - 2 4 /3 -2 9 /1 0
Seaport Shipping Corp. M/T ATHENS 2004 Liberia 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12

Kingsbridge Shipping Co Ltd M/T MARIA TSAKOS Liberia 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Oak Shipping Co Ltd M/T MILLENNIUM Liberia 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
M e a n d ros Shipping Company Limited M/T VERGINA Cyprus - -

(Sold July 1995)
Romeo Shipping Co Ltd Hull No S137 Liberia - -
Juliet Shipping Co Ltd Hull No S138 Liberia - -
Rigoletto Shipping Co Ltd Hull No S139 Liberia - -

*  Sold in October 1999 and leased back.

C. Financing Company

Maritime Investment 2000 1999
Finance Limited Liberia 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12

D. Chartering Company
Essex Shipping Co Ltd M/T OLYMPIA Liberia 1/1-31/12 2 9/10-31 /1 2

(Chartered vessel)
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

4. Segment information

The Company operates in a single business segment, i.e. tankers on a world wide basis.  

5. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year, before and after
depreciation, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2000 1999
Net income, before depreciation 34,765 25,842
Net income, after depreciation 14,114 4,347
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 9,823,589 9,991,152
Basic earnings per share, before depreciation* 3.54 2.59
Basic earnings per share, after depreciation* 1.44 0.435 
*Expressed in US Dollars

For the diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted
to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares.  The Company has one category of
potentially dilutive ordinary shares: share options.

The Company has an authorized stock option programme for the issuance of up to 450,000 shares of
which 246,000 had been issued as at December 31, 2000 with an exercise price of ten dollars per
share.  There were no share options outstanding as at December 31, 1999.

For the share options, a calculation is made to determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at market price (determined as the closing ordinary share price at December 31, 2000) based
on the monetary value of the exercise price attached to outstanding share options.  This calculation serves
to determine the "unpurchased" shares to be added to the ordinary shares outstanding for the purpose
of computing the dilution.

2000 1999
Net income, before depreciation 34,765 25,842
Net income, after depreciation 14,114 4,347

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 9,823,589 9,991,152
Adjustment for share options 63,372   -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
for diluted earnings per share 9,886,961 9,991,152

Diluted earnings per share, before depreciation* 3.52   -
Diluted earnings per share, after depreciation* 1.43   -
*Expressed in US Dollars
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

6. Cash and cash equivalents

These are analysed as follows:

2000 1999
Current and call accounts 8,876 8,559
Time deposits 20,891 23,027
Blocked deposit 7,528* 7,072*
Cash on hand 3 6

37,298 38,664

* This amount has been blocked in order to secure a letter of guarantee issued by Chase Manhattan
in favour of the owners of M/T OLYMPIA (See also Note 18 below).

The weighted average effective interest rate on short - t e rm bank deposits for 2000 was 6.2% p.a  (1999 5% p.a.)

7. Receivables: Insurance claims

These represent principally claims arising from hull or machinery damages, loss of hire or other insured
risks which have been submitted to insurance adjusters.  These balances are net of deductible amounts.
Details are as follows:

2000 1999
M/T TOULA Z Damage caused by third-party vessel error 1,493 -
M/T TAMYRA Generator damage 2,405 -
M/T VERGINA II Damage resulting from third - p a rty pilot erro r 246 -
Other 92 140

4,236 140

8. Other receivables

This amount is made up as follows:
2000 1999

Advances to TST for vessel expenses 1,770 572
Agents – creditors debit balances 216 1,070
Other 60  -

2,046 1,642

9. Inventories

These are made up as follows:
2000 1999

Bunkers 605 1,001
Lubricants 458 346
Victualling 126 171
Stores 142 387

1,331 1,905
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

10. Prepayments

These represent mainly prepaid insurances, as well as, consultancy fees. These are made up as follows:

2000 1999
Prepaid expenses 601 573
Consultancy fees 248 -

849 573
11. Fixed assets and depreciation

Details are as follows:

Cost of Assets Accumulated Net Book 
Depreciation Value

Balance December 31, 1998 451,651 (45,469) 406,182
Additions/Provision for depreciation 36,281 (21,495) 14,786
Disposals     (35,338) 776     (34,562)
Balance December 31, 1999 452,594 (66,188) 386,406
Additions/Provision for depreciation 362 (20,651) (20,289)
Balance December 31, 2000 452,956 (86,839) 366,117

The cost of vessels and accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2000 are analysed as follows:

Vessel's Name Year DWT Year Cost of Accumulated  NetBook 
Built Acquired Vessels Depreciation Value

MILLENNIUM 1998 302,000 1998 84,336 (7,076) 77,260
MARIA TSAKOS 1998 107,327 1998 42,540 (3,926) 38,614
ATHENS 2004 1998 107,327 1998 43,408 (4,539) 38,869
TOULA Z 1997 107,327 1997 43,800 (5,725) 38,075
VERGINA II 1991 90,916 1996 32,789 (5,806) 26,983
VICTORY III 1990 68,160 1996 27,711 (4,973) 22,738
HESNES 1990 68,157 1996 28,809 (6,358) 22,451
BREGEN 1989 68,157 1995 28,092 (6,622) 21,470
LIBRA 1988 41,161 1994 20,297 (6,229) 14,068
CRUX 1987 41,161 1995 19,798 (5,687) 14,111
PELLA 1985 40,302 1993 16,741 (6,608) 10,133
DION 1984 40,231 1993 16,261 (6,815) 9,446
TAMYRA 1983 86,843 1993 17,198 (6,861) 10,337
PANOS G 1981 86,983 1996 17,098 (5,187) 11,911
LIBERTY 1981         61,375 1996 14,078 (4,427) 9,651

1,317,427 452,956 (86,839) 366,117

Preferred mortgages have been registered on the Company’s vessels in order to secure the loan facilities
referred to in Note 15 below.
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

12. Vessels under construction

The amounts included for vessels under construction re p resent the amounts paid by the Company in accord a n c e
with the terms of the purchase agreement for the acquisition of Hulls No S137, S138 and S139 and, there f o re ,
do not re p resent the cost of construction as at the balance sheet date.  See also note 17.
Details are as follows:

Hull No Type D.W.T 10% deposit Delivery date
S137 Tanker 164,000 4,595 June 2002
S138 Tanker 164,000 4,595 August 2002
S139 Tanker 164,000 4,662 September 2002

13,852
13. Deferred charges 

(a) Special Survey/Drydocking
Deferred charges are analysed as follows:

Cost of Accumulated Net
deferred amortization
charges

Balance December 31, 1998 8,796 (2,356) 6,440
Additions/Amortization 3,440 (1,441) 1,999
Balance December 31, 1999 12,236 (3,797) 8,439
Additions/Amortization 5,270 (2,463) 2,807
Balance December 31, 2000 17,506 (6,260) 11,246

(b) Loan expenses

Cost of  Accumulated Net
deferred amortization

loan charges
Balance December 31, 1998 2,526 (476) 2,050
Additions/Amortization 634 (518) 116
Balance December 31, 1999 3,160 (994) 2,166
Additions/Amortization - (326) (326)
Balance December 31, 2000 3,160 (1,320) 1,840

Costs associated with the borrowing facilities are deferred and amortized using the effective interest rate
method over the period of the borrowings. The amortization of these deferred costs is as follows:

2000 1999
2000 - 326
2001 349 349
2002 339 339
2003 326 326
2004 312 312
2005 292 292
2006 222 222

1,840 2,166
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

14. Sundry liabilities and accruals

These are made up as follows:

2000 1999 
Payroll 830 239
Interest accrued 4,901 4,695
Accrued expenses 1,949 742

7,680 5,676

15. Long-term debt

(a) Long-term debt comprises loans advanced to the Company as follows:

Loan Current portion Long-term Portion Balance December 31
2000 1999

A 17,656 193,364 211,020 227,455
B 2,807 51,095 53,902 56,526

20,463 244,459 264,922 283,981

(b) The annual repayments re q u i red on the long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2000 are
as follows:

Loan Vessel M/T Repayment terms

A TAMYRA
DION
PELLA
LIBRA
CRUX
BREGEN
HESNES
PANOS G
LIBERTY
VERGINA II
VICTORY III
TOULA Z
ATHENS 2004
MARIA TSAKOS
MILLENNIUM
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

15. Long-term debt, cont’d

B MILLENNIUM In March 1999 a revolving credit facility amounting 
to US$83.6 million was advanced to the Company in
two tranches in order to refinance the bridge loan
facility amounting to US$58.8 million relating (A) to
M/T MILLENNIUM and (B) to finance part of the
acquisition cost of M/T OLYMPIA of US$24.8 million.
The tranche A is payable in thirteen varying semi-
annual instalments as indicated in paragraph (d)
b e l o w, plus a final payment of US$31,774 thro u g h
December 2006.  In 1999 the first instalment of
US$1,247 was paid plus an amount of US$1,027
in advance of the instalment due in July 2000.  The
tranche B was repaid in full in 1999 following the
sale of M/T OLY M P I A .

(c) All loans re f e rred to in paragraph (b) above bore a weighted average effective interest rate at 7.33%
p.a for 2000 (1999: 4.6% p.a) taking into account swaps and are collateralized by pre f e rre d
m o rtgages over the Company's vessels and general assignment of all hire and freight revenue and the
assignment of their respective insurance policies.

The debt agreements also include positive and negative covenants for the Company and Guarantors
the most significant of which are the maintenance of maximum leverage and minimum liquidity of
US$10 million.  The Borrower is further restricted from incurring any debt, issuing guarantees and
paying more than 50% of cumulative net income as cash dividend without the prior written consent
of the Lender.

(d) The annual repayments of the long-term debt outstanding as at December 31, 2000 are analysed
as follows:

Years Loan A Loan B Total
2000 1999

2000 - - - 18,032
2001 17,656 2,807 20,463 20,463
2002 18,969 3,002 21,971 21,971
2003 20,379 3,212 23,591 23,591
2004 21,894 3,435 25,329 25,329
2005 23,521 3,675 27,196 27,196
2006 108,601 37,771 146,372 147,399

211,020 53,902 264,922 283,981

Details of the fair value of the company’s long-term debt is disclosed in Note 24 below.
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

16. Sale and leaseback

In March 1999, a subsidiary Company acquired the M/T OLYMPIA, a tanker type vessel, 107,327 DWT at
a total cost of US$35,338.  The vessel was sold in October 1999 at a net price after commission of
US$37,216, resulting in a net book gain of US$2,654.  The vessel is time-chart e red back from the buyer until
December 2006, the earliest date at which the arrangement may cease (See also Note 17 below).  As the
fair market value at the date of sale of the vessel was US$35,500, the excess profit over fair value has been
d e f e rred over the period until the end of December 2006, to be amortized in equal instalments as follows:

2000 1999
2000 - 239
2001 240 240
2002 239 239
2003 240 240
2004 239 239
2005 240 240
2006 238 239

Deferred income December 3 1 , 1,436 1,676

Deferred income amortized in 2000 amounting to US$239 is set off against voyage expenses.  In 1999
deferred income amounting to US$40 has been included in gain on sale of vessel of US$938 which was
part of the profit relating to the difference net sales and fair market value of the vessel.

17. Commitments

(a) The Company as of December 31, 2000 had outstanding commitments of approximately US$124,672 for 
the construction of three tanker vessels with Samho Heavy Industries Co Ltd, Korea, out of which an
amount of US$13,852 has been advanced.
Details are as follows:

Hull No S h i p y a rd ’s contract price Amounts paid Outstanding commitments
S137 45,945 (4,595) 41,350
S138 45,945 (4,595) 41,350
S139 46,634 (4,662) 41,972

138,524 (13,852) 124,672

(b) At December 31, 2000, the Company had a commitment relating to the time charter of M/T OLY M P I A
to make future minimum freight payments as follows:

2000 1999
2000 - 7,095
2001 7,139 7,139
2002 7,491 7,491
2003 to 2007 31,432 31,430

46,062 53,155

At the end of the seventh year the Company has an option to purchase the vessel at an economically viable
price.  The above time charter is treated as an operating lease.
The vessel is sub-chartered to charterers on either voyage or time charter basis.
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

18. Contingencies

(a) The Company is contingently liable for a letter of guarantee amounting to US$7,000 issued by Chase
Manhattan Bank in favour of the owners of M/T OLYMPIA securing the punctual payment of the
charter hire (See also Note 6 above).

(b) There are no material legal proceedings to which the Company is a party or to which any of the 
shipowning companies are the subject other than routine litigation incidental to the Company’s
business.  In the opinion of management, the disposition of these lawsuits should not have a material
impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial position and cash flows.

19. Extended period charters 

Under various charter agreements, the Company leases certain of its vessels to customers for periods of
time ranging from two to fifteen years.  As of December 31, 2000, five of the Company’s vessels were
subject to such  agreements.  Minimum payments to be received for time-charter agreements having initial
or remaining non-cancellable terms in excess of one year are as follows:

2000 1999
2000 - 35,267
2001 35,552 25,687
2002 26,925 9,420
2003 23,873 9,180
2004 9,333 9,180

Thereafter 89,964 89,505
185,647 178,239

Revenue recognized related to time charter agreements amounted to US$35,267 and US$36,548,
respectively, for each of the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999.

20. Taxes

The Company is not subject to taxation in Bermuda on its income or capital gains.  Also, the operating
companies listed in Note 3 above are not liable for corporate tax on income either in their countries of
incorporation or in the countries of the vessels' registration.  Only a tonnage tax is payable to the Greek
and the Cyprus states for the vessels flying the Greek and Cyprus flag.  Maritime Investment Finance
Limited is also not subject to taxation in Liberia.
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

21. Common stock   

The authorized share capital of the Company consists of 25,000,000 shares of which 9,658,857
(1999: 9,918,111) have been issued and outstanding with a par value of US$1 per share .

During April 1996, the Company issued 353,000 new shares, representing a capitalization of
US$4,501.

During June 1996, the Company issued a bonus stock of 100,700 shares, representing a capitalization
of US$1,208.

During October 1996, the Company issued 45,542 new shares, in exchange of 50% founder's incentive
fee, representing a capitalization of US$612.

During December 1996, the Company issued 5,051,790 new shares, representing a capitalization of
US$68,892 (net of offering expenses of US$1,833).

During December 1996, the Company repurchased and cancelled 23,063 shares, representing a
negative capitalization of US$305.

During April 1997, the Company issued 401,466 new shares, representing a capitalization of
US$5,829 (net of offering expenses of US$192).

During May 1997, the Company issued a bonus stock of 192,089 shares representing a capitalization
of US$3,169.

During June 1998, the Company issued a bonus stock of 215,524 shares representing a capitalization
of US$3,556.

During 1999, the Company repurchased and cancelled 93,937 shares representing a negative
capitalization of US$1,375.

During 2000, the Company repurchased and cancelled 259,254 shares representing a negative
capitalization of US$2,995.

FS 22

M I F  L I M I T E D  -  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  A N D  A C C O U N T S  2 0 0 0

4 9



MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

22. Paid-in surplus

This amount is made up as follows:

Paid-in surplus net 1/1/1994 28,571
Share bonus issue in 1995 (175,000 shares) 1,816
Balance December 31, 1995 30,387

1996 issue of common stock paid-in (353,000 shares) 4,148
Share bonus issue 1996 (100,700 shares) 1,108
Shares issue in 1996 for 50% founder's
incentive fee (45,542 shares) 566
1996 issue of common stock paid-in
(5,051,790 shares net of offering expenses US$1,833) 63,840
Repurchase December 1996 (23,063 shares) (281)
Balance December 31, 1996 99,768

1997 issues of common stock paid-in 
(401,466 shares net of offering expenses US$192) 5,428
Share bonus issue in 1997 (192,089 shares) 2,977
Balance December 31, 1997 108,173

Share bonus issue in 1998 (215,524 shares) 3,340
Balance December 31, 1998 111,513

Repurchase in 1999 (93,937 shares) (1,281)
Balance December 31, 1999 110,232

Repurchase in 2000 (259,254 shares) (2,735)
Balance December 31, 2000 107,497
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

23. Related party transactions

The Company has entered into a Management Agreement with Absolute Navigation Limited (Absolute) a
Liberian Corporation, to provide overall management of its affairs. Absolute has appointed Tsakos Shipping
and Trading SA (TST) to provide commercial and technical management to the Company's vessels.

Vessels’ operating expenses

The Company bears and pays through Absolute all operating costs, including repairs and maintenance, pro v i s i o n s
and crewing of the Company's vessels.  During 2000, the Company paid to TST an amount of US$21,440
(1999: US$20,750) for such operation costs.  Absolute, at its own expense, pays technical management fees to
T S T.  As of December 31, 2000 and 1999 advances to TST amounted to US$1,770 and US$572, re s p e c t i v e l y.

Management fees

Under the terms of the Management Agreement, Absolute is paid by the Company a fixed monthly
amount for each vessel under management.  The Management Agreement has been amended several
times to reflect the increasing size of the fleet under management and other market factors. 

Since July 1, 1998, the monthly rate per vessel under management is US$16.5 or US$15 if the vessel is
under bare-boat charter.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company incurred management fees
aggregating $3,132, $3,053, respectively, which are included in the consolidated statement of income
in "Management fees".

Chartering commissions

TST provides chartering services at a fee of 1.25% of hires and freights earned by the Company's vessels.
For each of the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company paid $1,163 and $856,
respectively, to TST for chartering commissions.  Such amounts are included in "Commissions" in the
consolidated statement of income.

Insurance premiums

For each of the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company paid to Argosy Insurance
Company Ltd an amount of US$1,363 and US$900, respectively, which represents premiums on the
Company's vessels’ insurance for hull and machinery in both years and for loss of hire for 2000 only.
This amount is included in "Vessel operating expenses" in the consolidated statement of income.   

Board of directors' and officers' fees

For each of the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company paid Board of Directors' and
Officers' fees of $125 and $165, respectively.

Travelling expenses

As of December 31, 2000 the Company paid to AirMania Travel SA US$181 for travelling expenses.
Such amount is included in operating expenses.
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MIF LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, cont'd

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

24. Financial instruments

(a) Interest rate swaps

The Company regularly enters into interest rate swaps to moderate the impact of interest rate risk. During
2000 the Company effectively used such instruments to reduce interest costs by US$669 (1999:
US$5,253).  Details are as follows:

2000 1999
Interest on loan and financing charges 21,251 19,958
Net interest swap savings (669) (5,253)
Interest received (2,487) (1,135)

18,095 13,570

(b) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their fair
value: cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables, other receivables, payables and long-
term debt.

(c) Concentration of credit risk

The following table provides information with respect to customers who, individually, accounted for more
than 10% of the Company’s consolidated revenues for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999.

2000 1999
PDVSA/Maraven 10,915 -
Lyondell 32,954 -
Sun Shipping/Blue Circle - 10,435
Standard Tankers - 10,071
Hyundai Merchant - 9,307
Total 43,869 29,813

25. Post balance sheet event

On March 29, 2001 MIF has contracted to build an Aframax tanker type vessel of 107,327 dwt at
US$39.10 million which is expected to be delivered in December 2002. 
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M/T Millennium
Description : Double Bottom/Double Side - VLCC
Total Deadweight : 302,000 mt
Built - Year/Place : 1998, South Korea
Classification Society : American Bureau of Shipping 
Length Overall : 331.00 m
Max. Breadth :   58.00 m
Summer Draft :   20.90 m

M/T Olympia / Maria Tsakos / Athens 2004 / Toula Z
Description : Double Bottom/Double Side- Aframax Tanker
Total Deadweight : 107,327 mt
Built - Place : Japan
Length Overall : 246.80 m
Max. Breadth :   42.00 m
Summer Draft :   14.80 m

Built Year/Classification Society  
M/T Olympia    : 1999 / Bureau Veritas 
M/T Maria Tsakos : 1998 / Lloyds Register
M/T Athens 2004 : 1998 / Bureau Veritas 
M/T Toula Z. : 1997 / American Bureau of Shipping

M/T Vergina II 
Description : Aframax Tanker
Total Deadweight : 90,916 mt
Built - Year/Place : 1991, Poland
Classification Society : American Bureau of Shipping 
Length Overall : 247.20 m
Max. Breadth :   41.60 m
Summer Draft :   13.73 m

M/T Tamyra / M/T Panos G
Description : Aframax Tanker
Total Deadweight : 86,843 / 86,983 mt
Built - Place : Spain
Length Overall : 243.80 m
Max. Breadth :   39.40 m 
Summer Draft :   13.11 m

Built Year/Classification Society  
M/T Tamyra : 1983 / American Bureau of Shipping 
M/T Panos G : 1981 / Det Norske Veritas

M/T Victory III1 / Hesnes2 / Bregen3

Description : Double Bottom/Double Side - Panamax Product Tanker
Total Deadweight : 68,1601 / 68,1572 / 68,1573 mt
Built - Place : Ukraine
Length Overall : 242.80 m
Max. Breadth :   32.20 m
Summer Draft :   13.62 m

Built Year/Classification Society
M/T Victory III : 1990 / Det Norske Veritas
M/T Hesnes : 1990 / Bureau Veritas
M/T Bregen : 1989 / American Bureau of Shipping 
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M/T Liberty 
Description : Panamax Product Tanker
Total Deadweight : 61,375 mt
Built - Year/Place : 1981, Japan
Classification Society : American Bureau of Shipping
Length Overall : 225.00 m
Max. Breadth :   32.30 m
Summer Draft :   12.28 m

M/T Libra / Crux
Description : Double Side/Single Bottom-Handymax Product Tanker
Total Deadweight : 40,161 mt
Built - Place : Japan
Length Overall : 172.20 m
Max. Breadth :   32.30 m
Summer Draft :   11.22 m

Built Year/Classification Society
M/T Libra  : 1988 / American Bureau of Shipping 
M/T Crux : 1987 / Nippon Kaiji Kyokai

M/T Pella1 / Dion2

Description : Double Side/Single Bottom-Handymax Product Tanker
Total Deadweight : 40,3021 / 40,2312 mt
Built - Place : Croatia
Length Overall : 176.00 m
Max. Breadth :   32.00 m
Summer Draft :   11.22 m

Built Year/Classification Society
M/T Pella  : 1985 / Det Norske Veritas
M/T Dion : 1984 / Det Norske Veritas

O N  O RD E R  ( a s  o f  3 1 / 3 / 2 0 0 1 )

SUEZMAX H/N 137, 138, 139 - TBN
Description : Double Bottom/Double Side – Suezmax Tanker 
Total Deadweight : 164,000 mt
Built – Year/Place : 2002, South Korea
Classification Society : TBN
Length Overall : 274.00 m
Max. Breadth :   50.00 m
Summer Draft :   16.00 m

AFRAMAX  S-1388 - TBN
Description : Double Bottom/Double Side- Aframax Tanker
Total Deadweight : 107,327 mt
Built – Year/Place : 2002, Japan
Classification Society : TBN
Length Overall : 246.80 m
Max. Breadth :   42.00 m
Summer Draft :   14.80 m
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Visit our website at:

http://www.mif.gr

Download a copy of our
2000 Annual Report and Accounts

in pdf format (Adobe Acrobat Reader).

● MIF Limited shares trade on the Bermuda and Oslo Stock Exchanges under the symbol “MIF”.

● Den norske Bank is the Company’s custodian in Norw a y.

● Stock information may be accessed thro u g h :
B l o o m b e rg under “MIF NO”
Reuters under “MIF. O L ”
I n t e rnet under “http://www. m i f . g r ”
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